6:00 P.M. Airport Advisory Committee Meeting

6:45 P.M. Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting

AGENDA
CITY OF LAKE CITY
City Council Regular Session
May 19, 2014
7:00 P.M. at City Hall

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION - Council Member George Ward

1.

2.

ROLL CALL

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS :

Ah. Ms. Sandra Joseph, Senior Planner, North Central
Florida Regional Planning Council to present the
Evaluation and Appraisal Report Notification Letter
relating to the analysis of the City’s Comprehensive
Plan
Following the presentation:

Requesting approval of the BAnalysis of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan and the Evaluation Notification
Letter required by the Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity to ensure compliance of the City’'s
Comprehensive Plan. A copy ©of the Comprehensive Plan
is available upon request.

Note: This item was approved for recommendation for
Council consideration by the Planning and Zoning Board
on May 6, 2014.

MINUTES

A. Regular Session-March 17, 2014

B. Regular Session-April 7, 2014

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA




City Council Agenda

May 16, 2014
2

A.

Tindale-0Oliver & Associates, Inc., Invoice No. 4901,

$5,865.20, Fire Assessment Program Update

6. PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL

7. PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

8. OLD BUSINESS

None

9. NEW BUSINESS

A.

1.

RESOLUTIONS:

City Council Resolution No. 2014-033, if
adopted, will authorize the City to enter into an
Fconcomic Development Agreement with (Codename:
Project Breeze}, a (redacted, F.S. 288.075)
Corporation {the “Company”).

City Council Resolution No. 2014-034, if
adopted, will authorize the City to engage the
services of Purvis Gray & Company as its outside
Auditor for the Fiscal Years ending September 30,
2015, September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2017.

City Council Resolution No. 2014-035, if
adopted, will authorize the City to enter into a
Natural Gas Service Agreement with Anderson
Columbia Company, Inc. for the purchase of
natural gas by Anderson Columbia to be used in
its facility operation.

City Ccouncil Resolution No. 2014-036, if
adopted, will authorize the City to enter into a
Timber Cutting Contract and Agreement with Great
South Timber & Lumber, Inc. for the sale and
purchase of timber to be cut and removed from a
tract of land owned by the City for a lump sum
purchase price of $269,262.34.

10. DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION

A,

Consider relief of fines imposed on two properties,

Parcel No. 00-00-00-10844-000 located at 628 NE
Congress Avenue and Parcel No. 00-00-00-10883-000,
located at 450 NE Denver Street. Both properties were
recently purchased by Mr. Robert Coon. (Bob Hathcox)



City Council Agenda
May 16, 2014
3

11. COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMEERS

12. ADJOURNMENT




A A

City of Lake City

205 NORTH MARION AVENUE
LAKE CITY, FLORIDA 32055

TELEPHONE: (386) 752-2031
FAX: (386) 752-4896

May 19, 2014

Mr. B. Ray Eubanks, Plan Review Administrator
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

Division of Community Development MAILED VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
107 East Madison Street RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Caldwell Building, First Floor e NO. 917108 2133 3938 9656 3937

Tallahassee, FL 32399-4120

RE: Evaluation & Appraisal Report Notification Letter

Dear Mr. Eubanks:

Pursuant to Section 163.319, Florida Statutes, as amended, each local government is required to notify the
state land planning agency as to its determination of whether plan amendments are necessary to reflect
changes in state requirements. After conducting an evaluation of the comprehensive plan, it is the
determination of the City that amendments are necessary to reflect changes in state requirements.
Therefore, the City wiil prepare and transmit- evaluation amendments by March 1, 2015 for review,
pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, as amended.

Robert Hathcox, Growth Management Director, is the person who is familiar with this matter and can be
contacted in writing at 205 North Marion Avenue, Lake City, Fl 32055, by telephone: 386.719.5752, by

facsimile: 386.719.5837, or by email: hathcoxr@lcfla.com.

Sincerely,

Stephen M. Witt
Mayor

L:201\Lake_City\EARLake City EAR Notification Letter. Docx



Serving
Alachua * Bradford
Columbia « Dixie « Gilchrist

Narth
Central
Florida

Regional
Planning

Hamilton *» Lafayette * Madison

Suwannee * Taylor ¢« Union Counties

Council  _© BO0E NW B7th Place, Gainesville, FL 32855 -1803 « 352.955.2200
DATE: April 18,2014
TO: Robert Hathcox, Growth Management Director
FROM: Scott R. Koons, AICP, Executive Director
d ok ok ok %k ok dk ko k ok k ok ok k ok ok K ok ok k ok ok ok ok Kk ok % ok ok %k ok ok Kk ok
Robert,

Please find enclosed ten copies of the evaluation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan in order to
determine if it reflects the changes in state requirements. The evaluation was completed with
assistance from the Planning Council pursuant to the guidelines provided by the Florida Department
of Economic Opportunity, Division of Community Development.

Also, please find enclosed the Evaluation Notification Letter stating that based upon the evaluation
of the Comprehensive Plan, it has been determined that amendments are necessary to reflect
changes in state requirements and that the City will transmit evaluation amendments by March 1,
2015, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, as amended.

Following approval by the City Council, please have the Mayor sign the evaluation letter, retain a
copy of the signed letter for your files, and return the signed letter with original signature to me.
Planning Council staff will submit the Evaluation letter to the Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity on behalf of the City.

If you have any questions concerning the attached document, please do not hesitate to contact Sandra
Joseph, Senior Planner, of the Planning Council's Regional Local Government Programs staff at
352.955.2200, ext. 111,

Scott

Attachments

L2081 4\Lake_City\EAR\Lake City EAR Memo.Docx

Dedicated to improving the gquality of life of the Region’s citizens,
by coordinating growth management, protecting regional resources,
promoting economic development and providing technical services to local governmants.



City of Lake City

205 NORTH MARION AVENUE
LAKE CITY, FLORIDA 32055

TELEPHONE: (386) 752-2031
FAX: (386) 752-4896

May 19, 2014

Mr. D. Ray Eubanks, Plan Review Administrator
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

Division of Community Development MAILED VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
107 East Madison Street RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Caldwell Building, First Floor NO. 91 7108 2133 3938 9656 3937

Tallahassee, FL 32399-4120
RE:  Evaluation & Appraisal Report Notification Letter

Dear Mr. Eubanks:

Pursuant to Section 163.319, Florida Statutes, as amended, each local government is required to notify the
state land planning agency as to its determination of whether plan amendments are necessary to reflect
changes in state requirements. After conducting an evaluation of the comprehensive plan, it is the
determination of the City that amendments are necessary to reflect changes in state requirements.
Therefore, the City will prepare and transmit- evaluation amendments by March 1, 2015 for review,
pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, as amended.

Robert Hathcox, Growth Management Director, is the person who is familiar with this matter and can be
contacted in writing at 205 North Marion Avenue, Lake City, FI 32055, by telephone: 386.719.5752, by
facsimile: 386.719.5837, or by email: hathcoxr@lcfla.com.

Sincerely,

Stephen M. Witt
Mayor

L:\2014\Lake City\EAR\Lake City EAR Notification Letter. Docx




REGULAR SESSICN MINUTES I I W L e
The City Council in and for the citizens of the City of Lake <City,
Florida, met in Regular Session, on March 17, 2014 beginning at 7:00 P.M.,

in the City Council Chambers, located at City Hall 205 North Marion
Avenue, Lake City, Florida.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION - Council Member Zack Paulk

1. ROLL CALL
Mayor/Councilman Stephen M. Witt
Vice Mayor/Council Member Eugene Jefferson
City Council Melinda Moses -~ absent
Zack Paulk
George Ward
City Attorney Herbert F. Darby
City Manager Wendell Johnson
Sergeant-at-Arms Chief Argatha Gilmore
City Clerk Audrey E. Sikes
2. PROCLAMATIONS
None

3. MINUTES
None

4, APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Jefferson made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Mr.
Paulk seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously on a

voice vote,.

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Request from Joe Sheldon, Natural Gas Director, to reallocate

5$30,000.00 from account 420-003-532.60~63 as follows:
$20,000.00 to 420-003-532.60.69 and $10,000.00 to 420-003-
532.60.67. This reallocation of funds will allow us to purchase
meters and gas valves for inventory.

of insurance have been provided.

Mr. Ward made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda consisting of
item A identified above. Mr. Paulk seconded the motion and the
motion carried unanimously on a voice vote.

6. PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL
None



9.

PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

None

OLD BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS:

A.

1.

City Council Resclution No. 2014-020, if adopted, will
authorize the City to enter into an agreement with Tindale-
Oliver & Associates, Inc. relating to providing professional
services to support the City in its review and update study of
the non-ad valorem fire assessment program for the Fiscal Year
2015 at a cost of $24,964.00. Mr. Ward made a motion to
remove City Council Resolution No. 2014-020 from the table.
Mr. Jefferson seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously on a voice vote.

Mr. Johnson reported the two major differences to the
agreement were the analysis of the tax rolls and the removal
of a public meeting.

Mr. Paulk made a motion to adopt City Council Resoclution No.
2014-020 authorizing the City to enter into agreement with
Tindale-Oliver & Associates, Inc. Mr. Ward seconded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Paulk Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

NEW BUSINESS

A.

RESOLUTIONS:

1.

City Council Resolution No. 2014-021, if adopted, will

designate Joe Sheldon, Director of Natural Gas, as an
alternative Director to serve on the Florida Gas Utility
Board of Directors (the ™Beard”) in the event the City

Manager is absent or unable to attend any Board Meeting; and
repealing all prior resolutions in conflict with this
resclution. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to adopt City
Council Resolution No. 2014-021 designating Joe Sheldon as an
alternative Director for the Florida Gas Utility Board of
Directors. Mr. Ward seconded the motion. A roll call vote
was taken and the motion passed.

Mr., Jefferson Aye

‘Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mayor Witt Avye



10.

11.

2. City Council Resocolution No. 2014-022, 1if adopted, wilil
declare property owned by the City to be surplus to its
needs, and will authorize the City to sell such property at a
public auction pursuant to and in accordance with the
provisions and requirements of Section 2-183 of the City
Code. Mr. Paulk made a motion to adopt City Council
Resolution No. 2014-022 declaring property surplus and
authorizing the City to sell such property in accordance with
City Code. Mr, Jefferson seconded the motion. A roll call

vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Paulk Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Mayor Witt Avye

3. City Council Resolution No. 2014-023, if adopted, will
reappoint Elizabeth Allum and Dorci Gruel as regular members
to the Lake City Code Enforcement Board effective March 18,
2014, for a term to expire October 7, 2016, or until their

respective successor is appointed. Mr. Ward made a motion to

reappoint Elizabeth Allum and Dorci Gruel as regular members
to the Lake City Code Enforcement Board. Mr. Jefferson
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye '
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION

A.

Approval to reject Bid Number ITB-009-2C14 for Horizontal
Directional Drills-Nine Locations in its entirety. (Wendell
Johnson/Steve Roberts) Mr. Johnson reported the City does not
have the community support to make this a viable project.

Mr. Ward made a motion to reject Bid Number ITB-0038-2014
relating to Horizontal Directional Drills. Mr. Paulk seconded
the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward hye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mr. Jefferscn Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

None



12. ADJOURNMENT
All matters having been handled, the meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM on
a motion made and duly seconded.

Stephen M. Witt, Mayor/Council Member

Audrey E. Sikes, MMC. City Clerk



35

REGULAR SESSION MINUTES L

The City Council in and for the citizens of the City of Lake City,
Florida, met in Regular Session, on April 7, 2014 beginning at 7:CC P.M.,
in the City Council Chambers, located at City Hall 205 North Maricn
Avenue, Lake City, Florida.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Melrcse Park School Student Council Nicole Bailey
(sponsor) and Laurie Ann Fike (Principal) attended with Melrose Park
School Student Council. Student Council President Jamya Fennell led
attendees in the pledge. The Student Council leaders are identified
below:

Nicole Bailey - Sponsor

Jaelin Brown - Vice President

Jamaya Fennell - Student Council President
Laurie Ann Fike — Principal

Madalyn Keen - Secretary

Darian Mayo — Representative

Makhia Miller - Representative

Taiya Peacock - Publicity Chair

INVOCATION - Mayor Stephen Witt

1. ROLL CALL
Mayor/Councilman Stephen M. Witt
Vice Mayor/Council Member Eugene Jefferson
City Council Melinda Moses
Zack Paulk
George Ward
City Attorney Herbert F. Darby
City Manager Wendell Johnson
Sergeant-at-Arms Chief Argatha Gilmore
City Clerk Audrey E. Sikes
2. PROCLAMATIONS
A. National Public Safety Communication Officers Week
April 13-19-2014 - Mayor Witt presented the Proclamation to

Public Safety Communications staff in attendance.

3. MINUTES

None

4. BAPPRCVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Johnson requested removal of item 10A Appointment of Special
Magistrate. Mr. Paulk made a motion to approve the agenda as
amended. Mr. Ward seconded the motion and the motion carried

unanimously on a voice vote.



5.

6.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Permit application from Lake City Cclumbia County Chamber of

Commerce to hold the 2024 Easter Egg Hunt on Saturday, April 19,
2014, from 9:00 AM until 3:00 PM, All supporiing documents

including certificate of insurance have been provided.

Ms. Moses made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda consisting of
item A identified above. Mr., Jefferson seconded the motion and the

motion carried unanimously on a veoice vote.

PERSONS WISHING TC ADDRESS COUNCIL

A. Ms. Rita Dopp, Executive Director, United Way of Suwannee Valley to
present Certificate of Appreciation - Ms. Dopp presented to Mayor
Witt a Certificate of Appreciation. Mr. Jochnson appiauded Jackie
Kite for her participation with the City United Way Campaign.

B. Mr. Ron Whiteside, CPA and Ms. Barbara Boyd, CPA, Purvis Gray &

Company — Fiscal Year 2013 Audit - Mr. Whiteside presented the Citys
audit. Mr. Whiteside discussed the one finding (page 69). Mr.
Johnson thanked Finance Director Donna Duncan, Assistant City
Manager Grayson Cason and staff for their hard work. Mr. Ward

made a motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2013 Audit. Mr. Paulk
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion
passed. :

Mr., Ward Aye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

None

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

AL

RESCLUTIONS:

1. City Council Resolution No. 2014-024, if adopted, will
appoint Matthew Erkinger, Sr. to serve as a member on the
Planning and Zoning Board and the Board of Adjustments of the
City to fill the vacancy of Mary Jane Woods whose term has
expired. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to adopt City Council
Resolution No 2014-024, appointing Matthew Erkinger to serve
as a member of the Planning and Zoning Board and the Board of
Adjustment. Ms. Moses seconded the motion. A roll call vote
was taken and the motion passed.



Mr. Paulk Aye

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2014-025, if adopted, will
confirm, restate, and ratify City Council Resoclution 2013-055
which authorized the City to accept a grant of an additional
25" utility easement from the Suwannee River Water Management
District adjacent to and contiguous with an existing 25’
utility easement acquired for the District which is recorded
in ORB 1074, beginning at page 1579, public records of
Columbia County, Florida, for the use by the City in the
operation and maintenance of the City’s water plant and
utility system. Mr. Ward made a motion to adopt City Council
Resolution No. 2014-025, ratifying City Council Resolution
No. 2013-055 relating to a utility easement from the Suwannee
River Water Management District. Mr., Paulk seconded the
motion. A roll call was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2014-026, if adopted, will
confirm, restate, and ratify City Council Resclution No.
2013-056 which authorized the City to accept a road right-of-
way easement from the District, 100’ in width, extending from
Southeast Timberwolf Drive to Southeast Waterplant Road, to
construct and maintain a secured, non-public, paved road for
ingress and egress by vehicular traffic to and from the
City’'s water treatment plant facility. Ms. Moses made a
motion to adopt City Council Resoclution No. 2014-026,
ratifying City Council Resolution No. 2013-056 relating to a
road right-of-way easement from the Suwannee River Water
Management District. Mr. Jefferson seconded the motion. A
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Ms. Moses Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Paulk Aye
Mayor Witt Avye



10. DEPARTMENTAYL ADMINISTRATION
A. Wilson Park Pavilion Name Recommendation {Wendell Johnson)

Mr. Johnson reported the pavilion is nearing completion of the
project and staff is currently awaiting the arrival of
furnishings, concrete pad work and landscaping. Mr. Johnson
then introduced Jeff Simmons, member of the City of Lake City
Community Redevelopment Advisory Committee, to address the
council with a formal name recommendation for the pavilion. Mr.
Simmons provided a heartfelt overview of the contributions Mr.
Herbert Darby has given to our community. Mr. Simmons stated
Mr. Darby has been an iconic pillar of Lake City and felt it was
important we honor Mr. Darbys many years of dutiful service to
our community by naming the pavilion Darby Pavilion at Wilson
Park. All members concurred with Mr. Simmons recommendation and
agreed the formal name would be introduced on the pavilion on
May 29, 2014 from 5PM - 630PM. Mr. Darby was truly honored to
hear this recommendation. Ms, Moses made a motion authorizing
the pavilion to be named Darby Pavilion at Wilson Park. Mr.
Ward seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed. ‘

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Paulk ~ Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

11. COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS
Mr. Johnson introduced -and welcomed the new Assistant Chief of Police
Gerald “Jerry” Butler.

Mr. Jefferson stated that he felt naming the pavilion Darby Pavilion
at Wilson Park was very fitting in honor of Mr. Darby. '

12. ADJOURNMENT
All matters having been handled, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 PM on
a motion made and duly seconded.

Stephen M. Witt, Mayor/Council Member

Audrey E. Sikes, MMC., City Clerk



S A

Tindale-Oliver & Associates, Inc.

- 3 Planning and Engineering

10000 N. ASHLEY DRIVE - SUITE 400 April 30,2014
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33602 . Project No: 393003-00.14
(813) 224-8862 . ’ Invoice No; 4901

Grayson Casen

City of ake City

205 N Marion Ave.

Lake City, FL. 32055-3918

Project 593003-00.14 Fire Assessmeni Program Update
City Ceuncil Resolution 2014-020

Task 0001 Review of Assessment Methodology
Fee
Percent Previous Fee Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Review of Asscssment 2,842.00 50.00 1,421.00 0.00 1,421.00
Methodology -
Service Cost Analysis 5.576.00 30.00 1,672.80 ¢.00 1,672.80
Service Demand Analysis 5.510.00 30.00 1.633.00 0.00 1,653.00
Cacluation of Develop Units & 3,728.00 30.00 1.118.40 0.00 1.118.40
Rates
Technical Report 3.031.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Meetings & Presentations 4,277.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Fee 24,964.00 5,865.20 0.00 5.865.20
Total Fee - 5,.865.20
Total this Task $5,865.20
Total this Invoice $5,865.20
Progress Report attached,
Project L /: 5 e Date: > )
Manager: Rt sy B i ﬁ%‘
T < T '
A, Kamp, AICP
o %
223
O
o O b \! 5
A\




PROGRESS REPORT 1
Tindale-Oliver & Associates, Inc. Project No. 593003-00.14
City of Lake City Fire Assessment Update Study
Service Period: April 1, 2014 through April 30, 2014
The following work activities were completed during the referenced time period:

TASK 1. BACKGROUND OF ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

+ Reviewed the previous study and resolutions.
» Prepared and submitted the data needs memo.

TASK 2. SERVICE COST ANALYSIS
¢ Summarized budget data over the past five years and identified questions.
TASK 3. SERVICE DEMAND ANALYSIS

+ Obtained incident data and started the review and analysis of it.

TASK 4. CALCULATION OF DEVELOPMENT UNITS AND RATES

+ Reviewed the tax roll and submitted questions to the Tax Collector's office regarding
some of the calculations.

TASK 5. TECHICAL REPORT
+ No activities completed during the referenced time period.
TASK 6. MEETINGS & PRESENTATIONS

e No activities completed during the referenced time period.

[:\593003-00.14 Lake City Fire Assessment Program Update\dmin\Invoices\Apr 14 Project Status
Report.docx



HFD/lss ) .
5/12/2014 9 /4 /

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2014-033

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKE CITY,

FLORIDA ("CITY"), AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH (CODENAME: PROJECT

BREEZE), A (REDACTED, F.S. 288.075) CORPORATION (THE "COMPANY").

WHEREAS, the Company is in the business of providing services and will
construct and develop an expansion of its existing facility located within the City
consisting of a c:':lpital investment of approximately $7,500,000.00 (herein the "Project”).
The Project is planned to be located and constructed as an expansion to the
Company's existing facility located in the City éf Lake City, Florida ("City"), a
municipality situated wholly within Columbia County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the economy, including the work force of the City, will greatly benefit
from the expansion of the Company's existing facilities and business in thé City. The
Project can provide additional employment to residents and citizens of the City,
enhance the potential for economic deveIOpmént, increased sales taxes, ad valorem
taxes, non-ad valorem assessments, and general economic growth and revenues from
such development and business operations and opportunities which will be provided by
the Company. It is the legitimate business and public policy of the local and state
governments under Florida law to encourage, engender, promote, and support
programs that provide impetus for economic development for the purpose of alleviating
unemployment and promoting the local and statel economy through the location of new

industry within the City and the State. The City Council of the City is empowered by

Florida Statutes Section 166.021 to expend public funds to attract and retain business



enterprises, including making grants to private enterprises for the expansion of
businesses existing in the community or for the attraction of new businesses to the
community; and

WHEREAS, the Company desifes to coﬁstruct the Project in the City, and in
order to induce the City to provide incentives to the Company, the Company has made
representations and warranties regarding capital investment, employment, and payrolt
expectations for the Project, and in order to induce the Company to construct the
Project in the City, the City has offered certain incentives to the Company, and the
parties intend to memorialize the agreement by entering into an Economi;: Development
Agreement, copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part of this
resolution (the "Development Agreement").

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, AS FOLL-OWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby
incorporated herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City is hereby authorized to enter into the Development
Agreement with the Company.

Section 3. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the

Development Agreement for and on behalf of the City.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this day of

, 2014,

Mayor-Councilman

ATTEST:

City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:

HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney



HFD/lss

9/17/2013

9/25/13

4/21/2014 (revised)
5/8/2014 (revised

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. (“Agreement”), is made and
executed this  day of . 2014, among [Codename: PROJECT BREEZE], a
[REDACTED, F.S. 288:075} Corporation whose mailing address is [REDACTED, F.S. 288.073]
(the “Company”); and the CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, and located within Columbia

County, Florida, whose mailing address is 205 North Marion Avenue, Lake City, Florida

32053, (the “City™).

PREMISES FOR AGREEMENT

A. The Company is in the business of providing [REDACTED. F.S. 288.075]
services and will co;1§tr1.1ct and develop an expansion of its local facilify consisting of an
approximately SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLAR ($7,500,000.00)
capital investment in the City (herein the “Project”). The Project is planned to be located and
constructed as an expansion to the Company’s existing {REDACTED. F.S. 288.075] tacility
located in the City. a municipality situated wholly within Columbia County, Florida.

B. The economy, including the work force of the City. will greatly ‘hencﬁt from the
expansion of the Company’s existing facilities and business in the City. The Project can provide
employment to residents and citizens of the City. It can enhance the potential for ¢conomic

Page | of 13

EXHIBIT !



employment to residents and citizens of the City. It can enhance the potential for economic
development, increased sales taxes, ad valorem taxes, non-ad valorem assessments, and general
economic growth and revenues from such development and business operations and
opportunities which will be provided by the Company. It is the legitimate business and public
policy of the iocal and state governments under Florida law to eﬁcourage, engender, promote,
and support programs that provide impetus for economic development for the purpose of
alleviating unemployment and promoting the local and state economy through the location of
new industry .within the City and the State. The City Council of the City 1s empowered by
Florida Statutés section 166.021 to expend public funds to attract and retain business enterprises,
including making grants to private enterprises for the expansion of businesses existing in the
community or for the attraction of new businesses to the community.

C. The Company desires to construct the Project in the City, and in order to induce
the City to provide incentives set forth in this Agreement, the Company has made representations
and warramies regarding capital investment, employment, and payroll expectations for the
Project. and 1r1 order to induce the Company to construct the Pro;iect in the City, the City has
offered certain incentives to the Company, and the parties intend to memorialize the agreement
among and between the parties by entering mto this Economic Development Agreement. The
parties acknowledge the resulting economic benefits to the City community will be substantial.

D. The parties acknowledge that the agreements and representations. set forth herein
are subject to further actions that the parties must undertake to construct the Project and
implement the incentives described in this Agreement. including. specifically, commencement of
construction and employment at a minimum salary ot a minimum number of additional fuli-time

or full-time-equivalent workers at the facility when the Project is completed.



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the sum of Ten and No/100
($10.00) Dollars and other valuable consideration, including the mutual covenants set forth
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties
coveﬁam and agree as follows:

1. SITE. The Company agrees to develop and construct, and properly equip the Site
and Project as a lawfully, properly permitted expanded [REDACTED, F.S. 288.073] facility with
capitél investment of approximately SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND
DOI:LAR ($7,500,000.00) including necessary tangible pérsonal property and equipment for the

Project and Site.

2 COMPANY’S REPRESENTATIONS -AND ASSURANCES. As an

additional incentive to the City for the performance of its obligations under the terms of this
Agreement, the Company agrees as follows:

a. Beginning no later than thirty (SQ) days from the date the Company

completes construction of the facility as described herein at the Site and continuing for no

~ less than three (3) years thereafter, the Company will continuously maintain a business

~ upon the Site. Said business shall, within twelve (12) months of completion, create not

less than 10 additional full-time or full-time equivalent employment positions within the

tacility expansion (the “Expansion Positions™). except during such ttme as the Company

may be prevented from doing so on account of war, acts of public enemy. restrictions or

prohibitions of state or tederal government. or any of their respective agencies, fire,

windstorm, strikes, or other factors beyond the control of the Company. Full-time

empioyees work a minimum of 32 hours per week and are chgible tor benetfits. Full-time

Page 3 of 13



equivalences are based on a 32 hour work week. The average annual salary of the
Expansion Positions, excludi_‘ng benefits, must be 125% of the Columbia County average
annual wage. The average annual wage for Columbia County as of the date of this
Agreement is $33,989.00. Therefore, the wage requirement for this Agreement shall
equal $42,486.00 ($33,989.00 x 1.25) per.year.

b. In the event that the average number of Expansion Positions during any
calendar year falls below 10 during the three-year period from the date the Company has
met the job creation requirement of 10 Expansion Positions, then the Company shall be
ineligible for further economic developrr;ant incentives as set forth herein, except if such
deficiency is due to force majeure such as defined in subparagraph a. above, or the
Company has provided reasonable explanation acceptable to the City for the deficiency,
or both parties agree such déficiency is the result of broad and general adverse economic
conditions.

c. The Company will providelthe City with a certificate of good standing and
its authorization to do business in the Sté;te of Florida from the Secretary of the State of
Florida together with a copy of the Comp-any’s management or operating agreement, and
the name and address of all principals of the Company.

d. The- Company has all requisite power, authority, license. permits,
corporate or otherwise, to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its obligations
hereunder. The Company's execution. delivery and performance of this Agreement have
been duly authorized by or in accordance with its organizational. and governing

instruments. and this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered for it by

Page4 of 13



signatories so authorized, and it constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the
Company.

€. The Company and the City have not received any notice nor to the best of
their knowledge is there any pending or threatened notice of any violation of any
applicable laws, ordinances, régulalions, rules, decrees, permits or orders which would
materially and adversely affect their respective ability to perform under this Agreement.

3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES. So tong as the Company is

not in default under this Agreement, the City shall provide the Company with the following

economic development incentives:

a. JOBS CREATION: To induce the Company to create the new jobs in

the City set forth in paragraph 2.a., supra, upon notification from the Company and
verification from the City’s Finance Director that the Cor/npany has met the job creation
requirement of 10 Expansion Positions, the City shall pay the sum of $747.00 for each
FTE job up to forty (40) FTE jobs in each of three consecutive years so long as the
Company remains in compliari.ce with this Agreement. The first payment shall be issued
within thirty (30) days t'ollowin.g receipt of all employee information on or before the first
anniversary date of the completion of all capital improvements set forth in paragraph |
supra. Subsequent payments that become due hereunder shall be issued annually on or
about the anniversary date of the first payment. The City shall have the right to verity
additional positions created as set forth above. [ the Company is not in full compliance
with the job-creation provisions ot this Agreement. then the City shall have no obligation
to pay any part of this incentive for the year in which the Company fails to tully compty.

If the Company fails to meet its obligations in any year. this Agreement shall become

Page Sof 13



void as to all future Jobs Creation incentives and no further monies shall be due from the

City to the Company under this part.

b. CURRENT JOBS. Prior to the City making payments to the Company

under the incentive provisions set forth in paragraph 3 a., the Company shall provide the
City with a certification of its number of full-time employees existing at the time of the
completion of construction of the facility to provide a benchmark of the Company’s then

current full-time jobs to establish and use to measure the Expansion Positions.

4. CAPITAL INVESTMENT. The Company anticipates that the total investment
of capital (“capital investme;t”) for the construction of the Project (which shall inciude the
building and equipment at the Site) shall be approximately SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED
THOUSAND Dollars ($7,500.000.00).

5. COMPLIANCE.

a. Capital Investment. The Company shall provide to the City

documentation showing the torta! capital investment made for the Project ;vithin one (1)
month from the date o'fcompletion. In the event the Company does not complete the
project as detined in tﬁis agreement then the City may request the Company provide a
full, detailed. and reasonable explanation to the City for any modification in the Project
as defined herein. [f the City determines. with consideration ot 2a. that the Company’s
explanation is not reasonable to satisty this Agreement, the City agrees to meet in good
faith to discuss potential solutions and negotiate for an acceptable alternative. Any such
alternative is subject to approval by both parties.

b. Job Creation. The Company shall provide employment information

rellecting total employment and Expansion Positions subject to this Agreement within

Page 6 ot 13



one (1) month from the date the Company creates the Expansion Positionls. This
information shall be submitted annually to the City as part of the Company’s
performance under this Agreement, and may be verified by audit ordered by the City. The
audit shall include, but will not be limited to, comparison of position totals prior to
expansion asAprovided heretn with total positions at the facility following expansion. The .
Company shall specifically identify those positions it counts as Expansion Positions, and
shall demonstrate how those positions were filled during the prior twelve (12) months.
Vacancy in ahy Expansion Position due to circumstances beyond the Company’s control,
including, bl;t not limited to, resignation of an employee in an Expansion Position, shall
not be considered as evidence of the Company’s nonperformance under this part. In the
event the Company does not complete the project as defined in this agreement then the
City may request the Company provide a full, detailed. and reasonable explanation to the
City for any modification in the Project as defined herein. If the City determines, with
consideration_ of 2a. that the Company’s explanation is not reasonable to satisfy this
Agreement, t:he City agrees to meet in good faith to discuss potential solutions and
negotiate for.an acceptable alternative. Any such alternative is subject to approval by

both parties.

6. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended in writing at any time and

from time to time, as may be mutually agreed to by the Company and the City.
7. NOTICES. Whenever notices are permitted or required with respect to this
Agreement, the same shail be given in writing.

8. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS. The parties agree to execute and deliver such

additional instruments and documents, including those specifically identitied herein. provide

Page 7of 13



such additional financial or technical information, attend such public hearings or meetings
relating to the Project, and take such additional actions, as may reasonably be required from time
to time in order to effectuate the incentives contemplated by this Agreement.

9. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. In the event a party commits a material breach

of this Ag?eement as determined in good faith by the party to whom the commitment was due
(the “Breachee™), the Breachee shall notify in writing the party committing the breach (the
“Breacher”). The Breacher shall have 45 days from receipt of such written notlice to cure such
breach or provide a plan for such cure to the reasonable satisfagtion of the Breachee. In the
event such. cure or plan for cure is not provided within the 45-day cure period, then the portions
of this Agreement pertaining to the Breachee’s obligations may be terminated by the Breachee.
No party shall be deemed to be in default for a delay or failure in performance under this
Agreement, deemed resulting, directly or indirectly, from acts of God, civil or military authority,
acts of public enemy or terrorism, war, accident, fires. explosions, carthquakes, floods, or
catastrophi_c failure of transportation or strikes or any similar cause beyond the reasonable
control ot“_ any party. In the event a party determines that it will not be able to fulfill its
responsibil.ities in the manner described in this Agreement, the party shall use its best efforts to
give notice to the other parties. Such notice shall detail the responsibilities which cannot be
fulfilled, the reasons the responsibilities cannot be fulfilled. and the party’s proposal to cure the
problem. In no event shall cither party be liable to the other for special, indirect, consequential
or punitive damages. even if the party has been advised that such damages are possible. No
party shall be liable to the other for lost profits or lost revenues.

10. OTHER INCENTIVES. The specified listing of incentives herein is not

‘ntended to be and shall not be construed as a limitation upon Company’s right to obtain any

Page 8 of 13



other rights, privileges, or benefits for which it might quality under general law and, except as
otherwise provided herein, all incentives and benefits. whether conveyed herein or by general

law, are intended to be cumulative.

L1 CROSS DEFAULT WITH THE COUNTY AGREEMENT.  The Company

acknowledges that contemporaneously with this Agreement it has entered into an Economic
Development Agreement with Columbia County with respect to the construction and
development of Project Breeze, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “County
Agreement™). A default in any of the terms and conditions of the County Agreement shail

constitute a default under the provisions of this Agreement

12 LIMITATION ON ASSIGNMENT. Except as sct forth oth.erwise herein,

neither this Agreement nor any rights hereunder may be assigned by either party without the
prior written consent and approval of the other party. which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, including their successars and assigns, when
any assignment is consented to by the parties.

13. OTHER.

a. The representations, covenants and agreements of the parties are subject to
and contingent upon the mutual performance by the parties hereunder.

b. No.delay in any exercise or any omission lo excrcise any remedy or right
shall impair any such remedy or rigilt or be construed to be a waiver of any such remedy
or right nor shall it affect any subsequent remedy or right of the same or a ditferent
nature. Every such remedy or right may be exercised cc.)n‘currcntly or independently. und

when and as often as may be deemed expedient by a party.

Page 9 of 13



C. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this
Agreement on the part of any party to be performed should be determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenants or agreements shall be null
and void and shall be deemed separate from the remaining covenants and agreements
herein contained and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining provisions rof
this Agreement.

d. Company represents that it intends to comply with all federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances governing the Project and the incentives
described in this Agreement.

e. This Agreement and all transactions contemplated hereby shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with and enforced under the laws of the state.of
Florida, notwithstanding its choice of law rutes to the contrary or any other state’s choice
of law rules.

£. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of
which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but
one and the same instrument.

g Except as otherwise provided herein, each of the parties shall pay all fges
and expenses incurred by it in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

h. This Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be
enforceable by the parties and their respective successor and permitted assigns.

1. Any covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement between any

party and any other party contained in this Agreement may be amended only by a written

1

Page 10 of 13



instrument executed by the parties impacted. Any condition precedent to any party’s
obligations hereunder may be waived in writing by such party.

j. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein by reference.

k. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto contain the entire understanding
the parties and this Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understindings, oral
and written. with respect to this subject matter. |

I The parties acknowledge and agree that the City is an “agency” as defined
in and is subject to relevant provisions of Florida’s public records laws, Florida Statutes
Chapter 119, The Company, without conceding the guestion of its stalu; thereunder,
acknowledges that it may be required from time to time pursuant to Florida Statutes
section 119.011 and Chapter 119 to furnish its records, including the records of its

consultants, relevant to this Agreement.

14. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY. Notwithstanding any other provision of this

Agreement to the contrary, the City. as a political subdivision of the State of Florida, and the
other parties are bound by and do not waive the provisions of Chapter 768.28, Florida Statutes,
or any similar provision of state law limiting the City’s liability.

15. ATTORNEY FEES. Fach party shall pay its own attorney fees incurred in

connection with drafting and consummating the transaction of this agreement. Should either
party after default of the other file suit to enforce any provisions of this Agreement, then the
prevailing party shall be entitled to collect from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees.

including appellate tees and court costs.

16. VENUE. The sole venue for any legal action or proceedings arising from or as a

result of this Agreement shall be Columbia County. Florida.

Page 11 of 13



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year

first above written.

Signed, seated and delivered PROJECT BREEZE
in the presence of:
By:
Witness Print:
Title:
Print or Type Name
Witness
Print or Type Name
STATE OF
COUNTY OF
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2014, by as of PROJECT

BREEZE, on behalf of the corporation, who is personally known to me or who has produced a
Florida driver’s license as identification. ‘

Notary Public. State of Florida

(NOTARIAL
SEAL) My Commission Expires:

Page 12 of 13



Signed, sealed and delivered CITY OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA
in the presence of:

By: '
Witness STEPHEN M. WITT, Mayor
Print or Type Name ATTEST:
AUDREY E. SIKES
City Clerk
Witness
(SEAL)
Print or Type Name
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF COLUMBIA
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

) , 2014, by STEPHEN M. WITT, as Mayor, of the CITY OF LAKE CITY,
FLORIDA, on behalf of the City, who is personally known to me.

Notary Pubilic, State of Florida
(NOTARIAL SEAL) My Commission Expires:

Page 13 of 13



HFD/lss .
5/12/2014 L ? y2

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2014-034

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKE CITY,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENGAGE THE SERVICES OF
PURVIS GRAY & COMPANY AS ITS OUTSIDE AUDITOR FOR THE FISCAL
YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015, SEPTEMBER 30, 2016, AND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017.

WHEREAS, the City of Lake City ("City") is required by law to have an
independent outside auditor; and

WHEREAS, the City retained the services of Purvis Gray as its out;ide auditor
for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2012, September 30, 2013, and September
30, 2014, with three (3) additional years of service at the option of the City, pursuant to
and in accordance with the provisions contained in engagement letter dated August 23,
2011, authorized by City Council Resolution No. 2011-074; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise its option to retain the services of Purvis
Gray as its outside auditor for the three (3) additional fiscal years ending September 30,
2015, September 30, 2018, and September 30, 2017, pursuant to and in accordance
with the provisions contained in engagement letter dated May 8, 2014, copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part of this resolution (the "Engagement
Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in its best interest to contract with
Purvis Gray for its services under the provisions of the Engagement Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:



Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. That the City is hereby authorized to engage the services of Purvis
Gray in accordance with and pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Engagement
Agreement. |

Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to execute the Engagement Agreement for
and on behalf of the City.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this __ day of

, 2014,

Mayor-Councilman

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney



GPurvxs

Company

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER
May 8, 2014

Honorable Mayor and City Council,
Finance Commitiee, and Management

City of Lake City

250 N. Marion Ave. |

Lake City, Florida 32055

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the City of Lake City,
Florida (the City), for the years ending September 30, 2015 through 2017. We will audit the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund informatien, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements, of the City as of and for the years ending September 30, 2015
through 2017. In addition, the firm of Richard E. Parker, C.P.A., PLLC (Parker), with offices in Lake
City, Florida, will provide staff assistants and act'as a locat liaison. All of the work performed by Parker
will be under the supervision and direction of Purvis, Gray and Company, LLP and Purvis, Gray and
Company, LLP shall be solely responsible to the City for such services. Accounting standards generally
accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI),
such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the City’s basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in ar appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. As part of our engagement, we will apply cenain limited procedures to the City’s RSI in
accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. These limited
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquirics, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient cvidence to express an opinion or pravide any assurance.
The following RSI is required by gencrally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain
limited procedures, but will not be audited:

s Management’s Discussion and Analysis
m  GASB Required Supplementary Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Information

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the
City’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 141270 » 222 NE st Street » Guinesville, Florida 32614-1270 ¢ (352) 378-4A1 « FAX (332) 378-2505
Laurel Ridpe Professional Center o 2347 S L 17th Street » Ocala, Floeida 39471« (352) 7123872 « FAX (3521 732-0542
443 East College Avenue » Tallahussee, Florida 32301 « (850) 224-7 144 o FAX (850) 224-1763
5001 Lakewood Ranch Bivd. N.. Suite 101 « Sarasoia, Fiorida 44240 ¢ (9411 90G7-0350 » FAX {9415 907-0309

MEAMBERS OO0 AMFRICAN AND FUORILEINSTITLTES LY LIPRTHIEO ve s 1S ACCOLS TANTS
UNFANTEOEAATE S AaNIDS AND S PRACTICE SICTIANY

ATEMBER 3k SRS QAR INSTITUTE OF CIENFIED PILRLC A

BHBT"_,4 "



Honorable Mayor and City Council,
Finance Commiittee, and Management
City of Lake City
Lake City, Florida -2- May 8, 2014

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and
we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report combined
with our auditors’ report on the financial statements:

a  Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
s Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements
m  Historic Statements of Net Revenues and Debt Service Coverage

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generaily accepted accounting principles and
to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on—-

= Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect
on the financial statements in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards.

w Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Prafit Organizations, and Chapter 10.550, Rudes of the Auditor General of the

State of Florida.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance
and other mattérs will include a paragraph that states: (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to
describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance; and (2) that the
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550
report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the
report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and
Chapter 10.550. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

QOur audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Awdir Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions
of OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination
of major program(s) in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and project(s) in accordance with Chapter
10.530, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opintons. We will issuc
written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Qur reports will be addressed to the Honorable
Mayor and City Council of the City. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions wiil be
expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opiions or add
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single
Audit compliance opinions are other than unmoditied, we will discuss the reasons with you tn advance. If]
for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable o form or have not formed opinions, we
may decline to ¢xpress opinions or issue reports, or mayv withdraw from this engagement.



Honorable Mayor and City Council,
Finance Committee, and Management
City of Lake City
Lake City, Florida -3~ May &, 2014

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance, and all accompanying information as well as all representations contained
therein. Management is also responsible for identifying all federal and state awards received and
understarding and complying with the compliance requirements, and for preparation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state assistance (including notes and noncash assistance received) in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550. As part of the audit, we
will assist with preparation of your financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, state
financial assistance, and related notes. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, related notes, and
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures
of federal awards and state financial assistance, and related notes and that you have reviewed and
approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further,
you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, who possesses suitable skilfl, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and resuits of
those services; and accept responsibility for them,

Management is responsible for: (a) establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including
internal controls over compliance, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure
that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (b) following laws and regulations; (c) ensuring that there is
reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with compliance
rcquirements; and {d) ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is. reliable and
properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems dcsigned to achieve
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible
for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements,

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us
with: (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of
the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities also include identifying significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has
responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Your
responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
confirming to us i the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immatertal, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statcments taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programns and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud ulfecting the government involving:
(1) management; (2} employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material cffect on the tinancial statements.  Your responsibilities include



Hounorable Mayor and City Council,
Finance Committee, and Management
City of Lake City
Lake City, Florida -4- May 8, 2014

Management Responsibilities (Conciuded)

informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government
received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. [n
addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable
laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely
and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, or abuse that we report. Additionally, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and
Chapter 10.550, it is management’s responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on reported
audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a correcfive action plan.
The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on the commencement

of fieldwork. :

You are responsible for preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance (including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with OMB Circular A-133 and
Chapter 10.550. You agree to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. You dlso agree to include the
audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance that includes our report thereon.  Your responsibiiities include acknowledging to
us in the written representation letter that: (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and
Chapter 10.550; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133;
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period {or,
if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interprefations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been
engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to
include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we
have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial
statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that: (1) you are
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP); (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and
content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP, (3} the methods of measurement or presentation
have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such
changes); and (4} vou have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial
audits, aftestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in
the Audit Objectives section of this letier. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions
taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation
engagements, performance audits, other engagements, or studies. You are also responsible for providing
management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned
corrective actions, for the report, and tor the tming and formal for providing that information,



Honorable Mayor and City Council,
Finance Committee, and Management
City of Lake City
Lake City, Florida -3. May 8, 2014

Audit Procedures—General
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be

examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We wil! plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatemnent, whether from: (1) errors; (2) fraudulent financial reporting; {3) misappropriation

of assets: or {4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or

to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of

abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable

assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
tmisstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations
of taws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
staternents or major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any
material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of asscts that come te our attention.
We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental
regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that
comes to our attention. We will inciude such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Qur procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys
as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our
audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial
statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance; federul award
programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities
required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
1est the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are material to the tinancial statements and to preventing and detecting inisstatements resulting
from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. Our tests, it performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on
internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on iniernal control issued
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.






